
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Graham

AGENDA July 02, 2014

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Graham

Minutes Recessed Meeting - June 11, 2014

Minutes Agenda Session - June 11, 2014

Minutes Regular Meeting - June 18, 2014

Res. No. 714-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for Notary Public positions.

Res. No. 714-2 A Resolution approving the purchase of Print on Demand printers and the required wax resin
ribbons amounting to $26,200 from Business Information Systems and to amend County Clerk’s
Revenue Budget in the amount of $11,000 and the Operating Expense Budget by $26,200 and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Report Trustee Monthly Report - May 2014

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report - May 2014

Report Criminal Court Report - May 2014

Report Juvenile Court Clerk Report - April 2014

Res. No. 714-3 A Resolution to approve a contract between the Sheriff’s Office and the City of Lakesite,
Tennessee, in order to provide police services and related vehicle expenses beginning July 1,
2014 and ending June 30, 2015, which is mutually renewable for an additional twenty four
months.  Additionally the City of Lakesite will reimburse the purchase of two automobiles, to
cover the three year period.

Res. No. 714-3A A Resolution to approve a contract between the Sheriff’s Office and the City of Lakesite,
Tennessee, in order to provide police services and related vehicle expenses beginning July 1,
2014 and ending June 30, 2015, which is mutually renewable for an additional twenty four
months.  Additionally the City of Lakesite will reimburse the purchase of two automobiles, to
cover the three year period.

Res. No. 714-4 A Resolution accepting the unit price bid of Shields Electronics Supply, Inc. for door access
materials for the period beginning July 2, 2014 through July 1, 2015 for the Telecommunications
Department and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement
this Resolution.

Res. No. 714-5 A Resolution accepting the unit price bids of Accu-Tech, DCO Distribution, Inc., Diversified
Supply, Inc., Graybar Electric Company, Kendall Electric, and Shields Electronics Supply, Inc.,
beginning July 2, 2014, through July 1, 2016, for miscellaneous voice and data
telecommunications materials for the Telecommunications Department and authorizing the
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 714-6 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a contract in the amount of $60,000 with the
City of Chattanooga for the Hamilton County Courts Community Service Program with a term
beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015.

Res. No. 714-7 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a contract in the amount of $185,230.75 with
the Tennessee Department of Transportation for the Hamilton County Courts Community
Service Program with a contract period beginning July 01, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015

Res. No. 714-8 A Resolution to declare the former Army Reserve Center property located on East 23rd Street
and jointly-owned by Hamilton County and the City of Chattanooga as surplus, to accept a
proposal from Rocky Top Enterprises LLC, and to authorize the County Mayor to negotiate a
Real Estate Purchase Agreement for the sale price of $157,348.

Res. No. 714-9 A Resolution to approve architectural firms for the design of one new school and three additions
to existing schools.



Res. No. 714-10 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a  lease agreement in the amount of
$9,445.00 annually with Chattanooga Church Ministries, Inc. d.b.a., Chattanooga Community
Kitchen for space for use by Hamilton County, Tennessee, the Health Services Division,
operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department’s Homeless Health Care
Center, for the period of January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014.

Res. No. 714-11 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
continue an agreement beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015, between Hamilton
County and the Tennessee Department of Human Services to provide Adult Daycare and
Homemaker Services for eligible individuals and families amounting to $330,000.

Res. No. 714-12 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
continue subcontract agreements with the Partnership for Families, Children and Adults, Inc. and
Signal Centers, Inc. beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015, to provide Title XX social
services for eligible individuals and families amounting to $330,000.

Res. No. 714-13 A Resolution authorizing the county mayor on behalf of Hamilton County Tennessee, the Health
Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to accept
an  agreement beginning July 1, 2014 and ending on June 30, 2015, between Hamilton County
and the City of Chattanooga in the amount of $23,306.00 to provide financial assistance to
families and individuals to prevent those families and individuals from becoming homeless and
to amend the Expense and Revenue Budgets by adding $8,306.00.

Res. No. 714-14 A Resolution approving an Amendment to the Hamilton County Employee Handbook.

Res. No. 714-15 A resolution to authorize expenditures at the discretion of the individual members of the County
Commission in an aggregate amount not to exceed nine hundred thousand dollars ($900,000)
from the County Line of Credit to be used exclusively for public works capital projects as defined
by Tennessee Code Annotated Section 9-21-105.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JUNE 11, 2014 
 

 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  June 11, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 11th day of June, 2014, a Recessed Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman. County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, and Chairman Skillern.  Commissioner Henry was not 

in attendance. Total present - 8.  Total absent – 1. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Boyd welcomed Pastor Ron Perry, South Seminole Baptist 

Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Boyd led in the pledge to the flag.  



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

JUNE 11, 2014 
 

 

 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-3  A RESOLUTION TO REAPPOINT T. W. FRANCESCON, 

JR., WILLIAM MADISON, AND ROBERT LEWIS, AND TO APPOINT MIRANDA 

PEREZ TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEE APPEALS BOARD FOR TERMS 

AS INDICATED RESPECTIVELY. 

 

 Chairman Skillern reported that this Resolution had been withdrawn. 

 

 There being no further business, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting 

adjourned.   

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

                                                                           _______________________________    
   William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

 
Approved: 
 
 
________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JUNE 11, 2014 
 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  June 11, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 11th day of June, 2014, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman. County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, and Chairman Skillern.  Commissioner Henry was not 

in attendance. Total present - 8.  Total absent – 1. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff.

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JUNE 11, 2014 
 
 

 2 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 

• Resolution No. 614-20 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• Resolutions No. 614-21 through 614-23 were board appointments, requiring no 
committee assignment. 

• An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

• Resolutions No. 614-24 through 614-32, and 614-34 through 614-39 were 
assigned to the Finance Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham.  

• Resolutions No. 614-33 and 614-40 were not used. 
• Resolutions No. 614-41 through 614-43 were assigned to a Committee of the 

Whole. 
 

 

Chairman Skillern reported that the Westview Elementary presentation to 

Commissioner Henry would be moved from today to next week’s meeting, as he was 

unable to attend today’s meeting. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 614-41 

 

 Commissioner Graham spoke regarding this Resolution, which would amend 

budgets for the School’s Federal Projects Fund, the Self-Funded Projects Fund, and the 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JUNE 11, 2014 
 
 

 3 

General Purpose Fund. He stated that this was a standard housekeeping procedure for 

the School’s budget paperwork.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 614-42 

 

 Chairman Skillern made comments concerning this Resolution, which would 

adopt the budget for fiscal year 2014 – 2015 and set the County’s tax levy for the year 

2014.  He asked if there were any questions or comments from the Commission 

regarding this matter. There was none.  Chairman Skillern thanked the Mayor and his 

staff, including Chief of Staff Mike Compton, for their diligence in helping put together 

this balanced budget. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 614-43 

 

 Finance Administrator Albert Kiser spoke regarding this Resolution, which would 

make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations in the County for the 

fiscal year 2014 – 2015. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JUNE 11, 2014 
 
 

 4 

 

Commissioner Mackey reported that he had attended the Legislative wrap-up last 

week as a representative of the Commission. He commended the local legislative 

delegation for their efforts to represent Hamilton County at the State level. He stated 

that legislative topics affecting Hamilton County included the sale of wine in liquor 

(grocery) stores, municipal annexation, and the school system’s Basic Education Plan 

(BEP) funding. 

 

Commissioner Graham welcomed members of his family who were in attendance 

for today’s meeting.  He announced that he and his wife Letitia celebrated their 25th 

anniversary yesterday. 

 

Commissioner Bankston announced that he and his wife had also celebrated 

their 45th anniversary this past week. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting adjourned. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JUNE 11, 2014 
 
 

 5 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
           

_______  
Date      Clerk’s Initials 

 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  June 18, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 18th day of June, 2014, a Regular Meeting of 

the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the Courthouse, 

in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the following 

proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Fred Skillern, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Henry, Commissioner Mackey, and Chairman Skillern.  Total 

present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, Assistant County Attorney Dee Hobbs, and County Auditor Bill 

McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 2 

Commissioner Haynes welcomed Pastor Gary Jared, Stuart Heights Baptist 

Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Haynes led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

PRESENTATION – CERTIFICATE OF CONGRATULATIONS – DIANE HITCHCOCK 

 

 Commissioner Bankston presented a Certificate of Congratulations to Diane 

Hitchcock, Outstanding Teacher at Snow Hill Elementary School, upon recently winning 

the Golden Apple Award from News Channel 12. 

 

 Ms. Hitchcock thanked the Commission for this honor.  She was personally 

congratulated and shook hands with Commissioners at this time. 

 

PRESENTATION – COMMISSIONER LARRY HENRY – WESTVIEW ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL 

 

 Westview Elementary School Principal Margo Williams presented a 

commemorative plaque on behalf of the school to Commissioner Henry for his years of 

devotion and support to both the school and the entire community. She noted the many 

contributions Commissioner Henry had made to Westview Elementary during his 

service.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 3 

 Commissioner Henry thanked Ms. Williams for this recognition. He stated that it 

had been a pleasure to serve in this capacity throughout the years. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of May 28, 2014, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of May 28, 2014, and the Regular Meeting of June 4, 2014, be approved, treat 

same as read, made a matter of record and filed.  The foregoing Motion was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-20  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE OATH OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFF AND THE OATH OF DEPUTY REGISTER. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Henry, to 

adopt Resolution No. 614-20.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 4 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 614-21 through 614-23 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-21  A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT 

BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY BEER 

BOARD, TERM EXPIRING JUNE 30, 2017. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-22  A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING COUNTY CLERK 

WILLIAM F. "BILL" KNOWLES, COUNTY AUDITOR BILL MCGRIFF, COUNTY 

COMMISSIONER JIM A. FIELDS, AND COUNTY ATTORNEY RHEUBIN M. TAYLOR, 

AND APPOINTING COUNTY FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR ALBERT KISER TO THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY ETHICS COMMITTEE. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 5 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-23  A RESOLUTION TO CONFIRM THE REAPPOINTMENT 

OF FIVE MEMBERS AND APPOINTMENT OF ONE MEMBER TO THE 

CHATTANOOGA HAMILTON COUNTY REGIONAL HEALTH COUNCIL. 

 

Resolution No. 614-21 confirms the reappointment of Chris Keene to the 

Hamilton County Beer Board for a three-year term expiring June 20, 2017. 

 

Resolution No. 614-22 confirms the reappointments of County Clerk Bill Knowles, 

County Auditor Bill McGriff, County Commissioner Jim Fields, and County Attorney 

Rhuebin Taylor, and appoints Finance Administrator Albert Kiser to the Hamilton County 

Ethics Committee for a two-year term ending June 3, 2016. 

 

Resolution No. 614-23 confirms the reappointments of Phyllis Casavant, Early 

Medley, Mai Bell Hurley, Eva Dillard, and Rae Bond, and the appointment of Cathy 

Sims Jennings to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Health Council for a four-

year term expiring June 22, 2018. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 614-21 through 614-23.  The motion was not voted on at this 

time. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 6 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding Resolution No. 614-22.  He noted for the 

record that these appointments, including that of Commissioner Fields, had been 

researched and there was no conflict of interest. 

 

Commissioner Fields confirmed that a conflict of interest did not exist. He 

indicated his intent to vote in support of these Resolutions. 

 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 614-24 through 614-29 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-24  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE HAMILTON 

COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE TO TRANSFER $8,190 OUT OF ITS NARCOTIC’S 

(CONFISCATED) FUND TO THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA’S CONFISCATED 

FUND. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 7 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-25  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF 

SECURUS TECHNOLOGIES TO PROVIDE THE INMATE TELEPHONE SYSTEM 

FOR THE COUNTY JAIL AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 

ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-26  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF SIX 

(6) PORTABLE RADIOS AND ACCESSORIES AMOUNTING TO $18,455.10 FROM 

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC. FOR THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-27  A RESOLUTION APPROVING A ONE (1) YEAR 

CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

CORPORATION (TASC) FOR COBRA ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FOR THE 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-28  A RESOLUTION APPROVING A ONE (1) YEAR 

CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

CORPORATION (TASC) FOR FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT SERVICES FOR 

THE HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 8 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-29  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FIRST YEAR 

CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH SUN LIFE FINANCIAL FOR REINSURANCE FOR THE 

COUNTY’S GROUP MEDICAL PLAN AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 614-24 

through 614-29 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended 

approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 614-24 through 614-29.  The motion was not voted on at this 

time. 

 

Commissioner Boyd made comments concerning Resolution No. 614-29.  He 

applauded mayoral staff from the Purchasing, Human Resources, and other 

departments for their diligence regarding these and other Resolutions.  He noted that 

because of programs implemented by the County such as the Wellness Center, Health 

Clinic, and County Pharmacy, insurance premiums were not increasing at the rate they 

would have otherwise. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 9 

 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 614-30, 31, 32, and 34 be 

considered together at this time. He noted that Resolution No. 614-33 was not used. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-30  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF GOLDEN 

CIRCLE FORD FOR ONE (1) 4X4 UTILITY VEHICLE AMOUNTING TO $27,671.80 

FOR EMERGENCY SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-31  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF 

MEDSAFE WASTE FOR MEDICAL AND PHARMACEUTICAL WASTE DISPOSAL 

SERVICES FOR VARIOUS HAMILTON COUNTY DEPARTMENTS AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 10 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-32  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT FOR THE 

ACQUISITION OF RIGHTS-OF-WAY REQUIRED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

THE HIXSON PIKE (SR 319) AT THRASHER PIKE INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,427 OF WHICH 80 PERCENT OF THE 

COST WILL BE REIMBURSED TO HAMILTON COUNTY BY THE TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 20 PERCENT MATCH TO BE PAID BY 

HAMILTON COUNTY. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-33 RESOLUTION NO. NOT USED. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-34  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUALIFICATIONS 

AND FEE SCHEDULES OF AMEC ENVIRONMENTAL & INFRASTRUCTURE INC., 

GEOSERVICES, LLC, K.S. WARE & ASSOCIATES LLC, MARION 

ENVIRONMENTAL, INC., MC2 ENGINEERS, MORELAND ALTOBELLI 

ASSOCIATES, INC., S&ME, INC., STANTEC, TERRACON, AND THOMPSON 

ENGINEERING, FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING JULY 2, 

2014 THROUGH JULY 1, 2015, FOR GEOENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING 

SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 11 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 614-30, 31, 

32, and 34 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended 

approval. He expressed his appreciation to Purchasing Director Gail Roppo and her 

staff for continuing to find savings on these and other Resolutions. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 614-30, 31, 32, and 34.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Finance Committee Chairman Graham asked that Resolution No. 614-39 be 

considered at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-39  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH A TERM ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 WITH THE 

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE 

SERVICES AND AMENDING THE DRUG COURT FUND BY ADDING $425,000 TO 

THE REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGETS. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 12 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution No. 614-39 and 

stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 614-39.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Resolutions No. 614-35 through 614-38 be 

considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-35  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH A TERM OF JULY 1, 2014 TO JUNE 30, 2015 

WITH MS. ELAINE KELLY TO SERVE AS COORDINATOR OF THE HAMILTON 

COUNTY DRUG COURT PROGRAM. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 13 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-36  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH A TERM OF JULY 1, 2014 TO JUNE 30, 2015, 

WITH MS. CRYSTAL COUCH TO SERVE AS A PROGRAM ASSISTANT FOR THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY DRUG COURT PROGRAM. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-37  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH A TERM OF JULY 1, 2014 TO JUNE 30, 2015, 

WITH MR. JOHN ROBERT COOPER TO SERVE AS A JUNIOR CASE MANAGER 

FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY DRUG COURT PROGRAM. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-38  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH A TERM OF JULY 1, 2014 TO JUNE 30, 2015 

WITH MR. JEFF S. HILL TO SERVE AS CASE MANAGER FOR THE HAMILTON 

COUNTY DRUG COURT PROGRAM. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 614-35 

through 614-38 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended 

approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 614-35 through 614-38.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 14 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-40 RESOLUTION NO. NOT USED. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-41  A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE SCHOOLS FEDERAL 

PROJECTS FUND BUDGET BY ADDING $666,568 TO THE FY 2013-2014 REVENUE 

AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET; TO AMEND THE SELF-FUNDED PROJECTS FUND 

BUDGET BY ADDING $572,279 TO THE FY 2013-2014 REVENUE AND 

EXPENDITURE BUDGET; TO AMEND THE GENERAL PURPOSE FUND BUDGET 

BY ADDING $1,564,326 TO THE FY 2013-2014 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE 

BUDGET. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolution No. 614-41, noting 

that this item had been heard by a Committee of the Whole. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, 

to adopt Resolution No. 614-41.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 15 

present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-42  A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2014–2015 AND SETTING THE TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2014 

FOR HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE. 

 

Chairman Skillern reported that Mayor Coppinger had presented his budget 

recommendations to the Commission at the June 4, 2014 Regular Meeting. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 614-42.  The motion was not voted on at this time. 

 

Several members of the Commission thanked Mayor Coppinger and his staff for 

their hard work in providing a streamlined and concise budget to the Commission. 

 

Commissioner Mackey stated there had been recent assertions in the news 

media that the Commission had violated the Sunshine Law by meeting with the Mayor 

to discuss budgetary matters. He noted that to his knowledge, members of the 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 16 

Commission had not received invitations to meet personally with the Mayor to discuss 

the budget. He encouraged the Mayor to maintain a strong line of communication with 

the Commission to keep them informed on this matter. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.   

 

Mayor Coppinger expressed his appreciation to the Commission for their support 

of the budget today.  He thanked his staff for their hard work in putting it together. 

 

Chairman Skillern made comments regarding the 2.5% employee salary increase 

included in the budget, as well as the increased cost of health insurance. He 

emphasized that these were funded by growth experienced throughout the County in 

the past year, as well as other savings realized. He pointed out that certain savings 

were a result of fewer positions and vehicles, along with the combining of other 

positions. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 17 

RESOLUTION NO. 614-43  A RESOLUTION MAKING APPROPRIATIONS TO 

NONPROFIT CHARITABLE AND CIVIC ORGANIZATIONS OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 

TENNESSEE, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2015. 

 

 Finance Administrator Albert Kiser provided details regarding this Resolution, 

which was heard last week as a Committee of the Whole. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Henry, to 

adopt Resolution No. 614-43.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fields, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Henry, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Skillern, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 18 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding today’s budget Resolution and the 2.5% 

employee raise, pointing out that the City of Chattanooga had recently approved a 1.5% 

raise for their employees. 

 

Commissioner Graham made comments concerning the previously mentioned 

news articles suggesting that Commissioners had violated the Sunshine Law by 

discussing the budget with Mayor Coppinger. He stated that in order for the Sunshine 

Law to be violated, the members deliberating the matter would both have to be able to 

vote in the Legislative Body. He asked whether the Mayor had a vote in the 

Commission. 

 

Assistant County Attorney Hobbs responded that the Mayor did not have a vote 

on the Commission. It was his opinion that it was not a violation of the Sunshine Law for 

members of the Commission to discuss the budget with the Mayor. 

 

Commissioner Graham emphasized the importance of having a strong 

relationship and open line of communication with the Mayor in order to be kept informed 

on important matters to the County. 

 

Commissioner Boyd announced that the Girls Inc.’s Bookworm literacy program 

had recently been recognized as Impact Program of the Year by United Way of 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 19 

Chattanooga. He stated this program provided literacy training to the underserved 

students ages pre-k to second grade. 

 

Commissioners Bankston and Fields welcomed their wives, who were both in 

attendance for today’s meeting. Commissioner Fields announced that he and his wife 

were celebrating their 32nd anniversary today. 

 

Mayor Coppinger stated that in June 2009, the Commission had approved a 

Resolution to accept the old Charles A. Bell school property from the City of 

Chattanooga through a quitclaim deed. He reported that the County then applied and 

received a grant for cleanup and remediation of the property.  He announced that all 

cleanup had been performed and the property would be transferred back to the City of 

Chattanooga this week. This transfer did not require further Commission action, as the 

previous 2009 Resolution had already given consent to do so. 

 

Mayor Coppinger made comments regarding today’s Sunshine Law discussion. 

He also reemphasized the importance of strong communication between himself and 

members of the Commission. He encouraged members of the Commission to always 

feel free to stop by his office or call him regarding any matters. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 20 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Skillern asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Rick Carpenter, a resident at 3119 Chicalilly Avenue, who has addressed the 

Commission many times, relating to his problem with the Hamilton County Water and 

Wastewater Treatment Authority (WWTA), approached the podium.  He stated that the 

County Attorney has not responded to his earlier public inquiry into the County’s 

compliance with the Coinage Act of 1965.   

 

Assistant County Attorney Hobbs responded that to his understanding, Mr. 

Carpenter’s question related to the WWTA, which was a separate legal entity than 

Hamilton County, Tennessee. He stated that the County did currently accept cash as 

payment, to his knowledge. 

 

Upon further questioning by Mr. Carpenter, Attorney Hobbs replied that Chris 

Clem, the attorney representing the WWTA in a lawsuit against Mr. Carpenter, was not 

employed or being paid by Hamilton County. 

 

Chairman Skillern asked that Finance Administrator Albert Kiser research 

whether Mr. Clem had ever been paid by Hamilton County. Mr. Kiser indicated he would 

do so and report back to the Commission. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 18, 2014 
 

 21 

 

There being no further business, Chairman Skillern declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, June 25, 2014 at 9:30 AM.  

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 

 
 



 

 

No. 714-1 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS. 
 
   
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
 2. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 















 

 

No. 714-2 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF PRINT ON DEMAND PRINTERS 
AND THE REQUIRED WAX RESIN RIBBONS AMOUNTING TO $26,200 FROM 
BUSINESS INFORMATION SYSTEMS AND TO AMEND COUNTY CLERK’S 
REVENUE BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT OF $11,000 AND THE OPERATING EXPENSE 
BUDGET BY $26,200 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS,    the Tennessee Department of Revenue is implementing the Print on Demand 

(POD) system of issuing decals displaying the expiration year when affixed to a 
license plate; and 

  
WHEREAS,    the Clerk recommends that the Hamilton County Clerk’s office should join in 

this cutting-edge advancement; and 
  
WHEREAS,  the POD process eliminates the need for controlled stock decals eliminating the 

need for purchasing and maintaining an annual inventory of said decals; and 
  
WHEREAS,   this new system will increase efficiency by no longer requiring  the Clerk to 

keep a log of decal numbers by printing the registrant’s license plate number on 
the decal that will become the control number; and 

  
WHEREAS,   this identifying plate number tied to the registrants license plate number will 

discourage the theft of decals from a license plate; and    
  
WHEREAS,   it will enhance the Clerk’s efficiency in issuing some 80,000 $5.00 stickers 

annually on behalf of the Chattanooga government as a convenience to 
motorists while at the same time they comply with the State Title and 
Registration law;  and 

  
WHEREAS,    it will eliminate the City of Chattanooga’s cost of annually purchasing and 

supplying an inventory of stickers to the Clerk’s office, and 



 

 

 

 

 
WHEREAS,    Business Information Systems is presently the software vendor for Hamilton 

County’s title and registration data program and is the only State-certified 
vendor for purchase, installation, and compatibles service to Hamilton County 
and other County Clerk Office’s across the State of Tennessee for this 
equipment (Datamax O’Neil E-4305A), and 

  
WHEREAS,   the Tennessee Department of Revenue will allot a one-time subsidy totaling 

$11,000 to Hamilton County toward the initial cost of said POD equipment, 
installation and service resulting in a net cost of $15,200 to Hamilton County, 
and 

  
WHEREAS,   on a continuing basis the Department of Revenue has agreed to furnish all 

necessary thermal pressure sensitive card stock involved in Hamilton County’s 
POD decal issuance to motorists. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That this resolution be adopted approving the purchase of aforementioned POD printers and 
ribbons from Business Information Systems and amending the County Clerk’s revenue and 
operating expense budgets in the amounts of $11,000 and $26,200, respectively. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 

































 

 

No. 714-3 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND 
THE CITY OF LAKESITE, TENNESSEE, IN ORDER TO PROVIDE POLICE SERVICES 
AND RELATED VEHICLE EXPENSES BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 
2015, WHICH IS MUTUALLY RENEWABLE FOR AN ADDITIONAL TWENTY FOUR 
MONTHS.   ADDITIONALLY THE CITY OF LAKESITE WILL REIMBURSE THE 
PURCHASE OF TWO AUTOMOBILES, TO COVER THE THREE YEAR PERIOD. 
 
WHEREAS, Lakesite has agreed to pay $112,000 for “police services” on a annual basis, in 
quarterly installments, which is partially included in the Sheriff’s proposed FY 2015 budget, 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, Lakesite has agreed to reimburse the Sheriff for the purchase of two fully 
equipped automobiles Tennessee for $30,316 each, or a total of $60,632, which was not 
included in the Sheriff’s proposed FY 2015 budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Lakesite has agreed to reimburse $15,000 for related “vehicle expenses” on an 
annual basis, in quarterly installments, which is partially included in the Sheriff’s proposed FY 
2015 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
To approve the contract between the Sheriff’s Office and the City of Lakesite, by increasing the 
Sheriff’s Capital Budget by $60,632 and increasing both the revenue and expense budget by $6,275 for 
FY 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 1 

 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF LAKESITE, TENNESSEE,  

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE AND 
THE SHERIFF OF HAMILTON COUNTY 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF POLICE SERVICES 
 
Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated §5-1-113 and 12-9-101 et seq.,  better known as the 

Interlocal Cooperation Act, the City of Lakesite, which is located in Hamilton County, 

Tennessee [hereinafter referred to as “City”], the Hamilton County Sheriff’s Office [hereinafter 

referred to as “Sheriff”] and Hamilton County, Tennessee, [hereinafter referred to as “County”] 

do hereby agree as follows: 

1. The Sheriff agrees to provide the City with the following services [hereinafter 

collectively referred to as “police services”]: 

a. Police protection twenty-four (24) hours per day by an officer assigned 

primarily to the City, seven (7) days per week, including but not limited 

to: the regular patrol of City; patrol of City owned property/park; the 

enforcement of Park curfews, and enforcement of all other Ordinances and 

Regulations of the City. 

b. Investigative services to investigate all homicides, sex crimes, burglaries, 

thefts, fires, property damage, vandalism, and other crimes. 

c. Police patrol of waterways surrounding the City and including any marina, 

docks, launching ramps, and inlets. 

d. Provide investigative services of all fatal accidents, hit and run, conduct 

reconstruction of such accidents as the Sheriff in his discretion may so 



 2 

order, and to provide other services as needed through the Traffic 

Division. 

e. Utilization of the Narcotics Division, K-9 Unit, Tactical Unit, and Crime 

Prevention Education units on an as needed basis. 

f. Service of City citations for violations of City Ordinances or Regulations 

as issued by the City Court Clerk not to exceed 30 per year.  Service of 

additional citations will be provided at the cost of ten ($10.00) dollars per 

citation.   

2.  The Sheriff agrees to be responsible for the payment of all salary, taxes, insurance, 

and to provide all equipment for the police services. 

3.  The City agrees to pay to the Hamilton County Sheriff’s Department and Hamilton 

County the sum of One Hundred and Twelve Thousand Dollars ($112,000) for 

providing the police services for a twelve (12) month period of time beginning July 1, 

2014, and terminating June 30, 2015.  Said payments shall be made by the City to the 

Sheriff by quarterly payments of Twenty-eight Thousand and no/100 Dollars 

($28,000) said payments being due on July 1, 2014, October 1, 2014, January 1, 2015 

and April 1, 2015, respectively.  Future year payments will be made in similar 

increments. 

 

Additionally: 

A. The City agrees to reimburse, in one lump sum payment within thirty (30) 

days following the execution of this agreement, to the Sheriff and Hamilton 

County, Sixty Thousand, six hundred thirty-two dollars ($60,632) for two (2) 



 3 

fully equipped patrol vehicles and any other equipment necessary to 

implement this agreement. 

B. The City also agrees to reimburse the Sheriff and County the sum of fifteen 

thousand dollars ($15,000) for the patrol vehicles’ liability self-insurance 

assessment, patrol vehicles’ maintenance, and patrol vehicles’ fuel and this 

amount shall be paid by quarterly payments of three thousand, seven hundred 

and fifty dollars ($3,750.00), said payments being due on July 1, 2014, 

October 1, 2014, January 1, 2015, and April 1, 2015.  Future year payments 

will be made in similar increments. 

4.  It is further agreed that the Sheriff and County shall assume responsibility for the 

action of any and all acts of the Sheriff or any Deputy, under his direction in the 

course and scope of his duties as a Deputy Sheriff, while performing the policing 

services outlined in this agreement, and will indemnify the City from any costs or 

liability for the same. 

5.  The City has approved this agreement and said agreement has been duly noted and 

approved on the minutes of the official records of the City of Lakesite. 

6.  The Sheriff does hereby state that it has the power and authority and has the 

approval of County to enter into this agreement. 

7.  The County does approve this agreement and does state that the Sheriff has the 

power and ability to enter into said agreement and that the said agreement is 

approved by the legislative body of the County. 

8.  This contract is automatically renewable for two additional periods of twelve (12) 

months, providing, however that the total payment for the second and third years 



 4 

shall not include the cost of the vehicles and equipment listed in Paragraph 3(A) 

above. 

This the    day of    , 20   

 

             
       MAYOR OF THE CITY OF LAKESITE 
 
       
 
             
       SHERIFF OF HAMILTON COUNTY 
 
 
 
             
       HAMILTON COUNTY MAYOR 

 
 
 

             
      HAMILTON COUNTY 
      COUNTY COMMISSION CHAIRMAN  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         Lakesite-Sheriff Agreement 2014.wpf 



 

No. 714-3A 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND 
THE CITY OF LAKESITE, TENNESSEE, IN ORDER TO PROVIDE POLICE SERVICES 
AND RELATED VEHICLE EXPENSES BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 
2015, WHICH IS MUTUALLY RENEWABLE FOR AN ADDITIONAL TWENTY FOUR 
MONTHS.   ADDITIONALLY THE CITY OF LAKESITE WILL REIMBURSE THE 
PURCHASE OF TWO AUTOMOBILES, TO COVER THE THREE YEAR PERIOD. 
 
WHEREAS, Lakesite has agreed to pay $112,000 for “police services” on a annual basis, in 
quarterly installments, which is partially included in the Sheriff’s proposed FY 2015 budget, 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, Lakesite has agreed to reimburse the Sheriff for the purchase of two fully 
equipped automobiles for $30,316 each, or a total of $60,632, which was not included in the 
Sheriff’s proposed FY 2015 budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Lakesite has agreed to reimburse $15,000 for related “vehicle expenses” on an 
annual basis, in quarterly installments, which is partially included in the Sheriff’s proposed FY 
2015 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
To approve the contract between the Sheriff’s Office and the City of Lakesite, by increasing the 
General Fund Revenue and Capital Budget by $60,632 and increasing the Sheriff’s Fund revenue and 
expense budget by $6,275 for FY 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

  



 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF LAKESITE, TENNESSEE,  

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE AND 
THE SHERIFF OF HAMILTON COUNTY 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF POLICE SERVICES 
 
Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated §5-1-113 and 12-9-101 et seq.,  better known as the 

Interlocal Cooperation Act, the City of Lakesite, which is located in Hamilton County, 

Tennessee [hereinafter referred to as “City”], the Hamilton County Sheriff’s Office [hereinafter 

referred to as “Sheriff”] and Hamilton County, Tennessee, [hereinafter referred to as “County”] 

do hereby agree as follows: 

1. The Sheriff agrees to provide the City with the following services [hereinafter 

collectively referred to as “police services”]: 

a. Police protection twenty-four (24) hours per day by an officer assigned 

primarily to the City, seven (7) days per week, including but not limited 

to: the regular patrol of City; patrol of City owned property/park; the 

enforcement of Park curfews, and enforcement of all other Ordinances and 

Regulations of the City. 

b. Investigative services to investigate all homicides, sex crimes, burglaries, 

thefts, fires, property damage, vandalism, and other crimes. 

c. Police patrol of waterways surrounding the City and including any marina, 

docks, launching ramps, and inlets. 

d. Provide investigative services of all fatal accidents, hit and run, conduct 

reconstruction of such accidents as the Sheriff in his discretion may so 

 1 



order, and to provide other services as needed through the Traffic 

Division. 

e. Utilization of the Narcotics Division, K-9 Unit, Tactical Unit, and Crime 

Prevention Education units on an as needed basis. 

f. Service of City citations for violations of City Ordinances or Regulations 

as issued by the City Court Clerk not to exceed 30 per year.  Service of 

additional citations will be provided at the cost of ten ($10.00) dollars per 

citation.   

2.  The Sheriff agrees to be responsible for the payment of all salary, taxes, insurance, 

and to provide all equipment for the police services. 

3.  The City agrees to pay to the Hamilton County Sheriff’s Department and Hamilton 

County the sum of One Hundred and Twelve Thousand Dollars ($112,000) for 

providing the police services for a twelve (12) month period of time beginning July 1, 

2014, and terminating June 30, 2015.  Said payments shall be made by the City to the 

Sheriff by quarterly payments of Twenty-eight Thousand and no/100 Dollars 

($28,000) said payments being due on July 1, 2014, October 1, 2014, January 1, 2015 

and April 1, 2015, respectively.  Future year payments will be made in similar 

increments. 

 

Additionally: 

A. The City agrees to reimburse, in one lump sum payment within thirty (30) 

days following the execution of this agreement, to the Sheriff and Hamilton 

County, Sixty Thousand, six hundred thirty-two dollars ($60,632) for two (2) 

 2 



fully equipped patrol vehicles and any other equipment necessary to 

implement this agreement. 

B. The City also agrees to reimburse the Sheriff and County the sum of fifteen 

thousand dollars ($15,000) for the patrol vehicles’ liability self-insurance 

assessment, patrol vehicles’ maintenance, and patrol vehicles’ fuel and this 

amount shall be paid by quarterly payments of three thousand, seven hundred 

and fifty dollars ($3,750.00), said payments being due on July 1, 2014, 

October 1, 2014, January 1, 2015, and April 1, 2015.  Future year payments 

will be made in similar increments. 

4.  It is further agreed that the Sheriff and County shall assume responsibility for the 

action of any and all acts of the Sheriff or any Deputy, under his direction in the 

course and scope of his duties as a Deputy Sheriff, while performing the policing 

services outlined in this agreement, and will indemnify the City from any costs or 

liability for the same. 

5.  The City has approved this agreement and said agreement has been duly noted and 

approved on the minutes of the official records of the City of Lakesite. 

6.  The Sheriff does hereby state that it has the power and authority and has the 

approval of County to enter into this agreement. 

7.  The County does approve this agreement and does state that the Sheriff has the 

power and ability to enter into said agreement and that the said agreement is 

approved by the legislative body of the County. 

8.  This contract is automatically renewable for two additional periods of twelve (12) 

months, providing, however that the total payment for the second and third years 

 3 



shall not include the cost of the vehicles and equipment listed in Paragraph 3(A) 

above. 

This the    day of    , 20   

 

             
       MAYOR OF THE CITY OF LAKESITE 
 
       
 
             
       SHERIFF OF HAMILTON COUNTY 
 
 
 
             
       HAMILTON COUNTY MAYOR 

 
 
 

             
      HAMILTON COUNTY 
      COUNTY COMMISSION CHAIRMAN  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         Lakesite-Sheriff Agreement 2014.wpf 

 4 



 

 

No. 714-4 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BID OF SHIELDS ELECTRONICS 
SUPPLY, INC. FOR DOOR ACCESS MATERIALS FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING 
JULY 2, 2014 THROUGH JULY 1, 2015 FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract unit pricing 

for Door Access Materials for the Telecommunications Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the unit price bid from Shields Electronics Supply, Inc. was considered to be 

the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available for various projects. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the unit price bid of Shields Electronics Supply, Inc. for Door Access Materials for the 
period beginning July 2, 2014 through July 1, 2015 for the Telecommunications Department is 
hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM  
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 

































 

 

No. 714-5 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BIDS OF ACCU-TECH, DCO DISTRIBUTION, 
INC., DIVERSIFIED SUPPLY, INC., GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY, KENDALL ELECTRIC, 
AND SHIELDS ELECTRONICS SUPPLY, INC., BEGINNING JULY 2, 2014, THROUGH JULY 1, 
2016, FOR MISCELLANEOUS VOICE AND DATA TELECOMMUNICATIONS MATERIALS 
FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract unit pricing for 

miscellaneous voice and data communications materials for the Telecommunications 
Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bids from Accu-Tech, DCO Distribution, Inc., Diversified Supply, Inc., Graybar 

Electric Company, Kendall Electric, and Shields Electronics Supply, Inc. were 
considered to be the lowest and best bids received and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Accu-Tech, DCO Distribution, Inc., Diversified Supply, Inc., Graybar Electric 
Company, Kendall Electric, and Shields Electronics Supply, Inc. for contract unit pricing, beginning 
July 2, 2014 through July 1, 2016, for miscellaneous voice and data telecommunications materials for 
the Telecommunications Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 













































































 

 

No. 714-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN A  
  CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $60,000 WITH THE CITY OF  
  CHATTANOOGA FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY COURTS  
  COMMUNITY SERVICE PROGRAM WITH A TERM BEGINNING  
  JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Courts Community Service Program contracts with the  
  State to provide litter and trash collection as alternative to incarceration for 
  selected offenders; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Chattanooga desires said services within the City and for special 
  events when needed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will provide a vehicle and collection materials; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City will reimburse the County $60,000 for the program’s services;  

and 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
  The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a contract, a copy of  

which is available on request, in the amount of $60,000 with the City of  
Chattanooga for the Hamilton County Courts Community Service Program 
with a contract term beginning July 1, 2014 and ending June 30, 2015. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND  
FROM ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
   

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 









 

 

No. 714-7 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
  A CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $185,230.75 WITH THE  
  TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE 
  HAMILTON COUNTY COURTS COMMUNITY SERVICE PROGRAM 
  WITH A CONTRACT PERIOD BEGINNING JULY 01, 2014 AND  
  ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Courts Community Services Program contract with 
  TDOT provides litter and trash collection on right-of-ways of area state 
  highways; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the program provides a valuable alternative to incarceration; and, 
 
WHEREAS, no match is required for this agreement; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY  
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
  The County Mayor is hereby authorized to sign a contract, a copy of 
  which is available on request, in the amount of $185,230.75 with the 
  Tennessee Department of Transportation for the Hamilton County Courts 
  Community Service Program with a contract period beginning July 01,2014 
  and ending June 30, 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT AT AND 
FROM ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 



Rev. 5-28-14  “EXHIBIT A” Page 1 of 3 

 1  

 

GUIDELINES COVERING MAINTENANCE 

OF STATE HIGHWAYS THROUGH A COUNTY 

 

The following items where applicable are eligible for reimbursement by the Department to the Agency under the Standard 

Maintenance Agreement: 

 

Activity Maintenance Work Type 
Unit Of 

Measure 
   

441 Litter Removal Pass Miles 

   

Litter Removal work shall consist of removal of litter from the entire highway rights-of-way where accessible (fence to fence where 

applicable), including shoulders and excluding the travel lanes on interstate and state routes as detailed below. 
 

 

 



Rev. 5-28-14   Page 2 of 3 

EXHIBIT A 

INVENTORY OF ELIGIBLE LITTER REMOVAL FOR THE MAINTENANCE 

OF STATE HIGHWAYS THROUGH A COUNTY 

 

The following Table itemizes the eligible length of litter removal in linear miles which will be maintained by the Agency under the terms of this contract.  The Department agrees 

to reimburse said Agency in the amount actually expended for litter removal, not to exceed the number of cycles and the price per linear mile as detailed below. 

 

Calculated Maximum Reimbursement (Litter):  $ 185,230.75  

           

Litter Inventory Worksheet 

Route 
Number 

Roadway 
Type 

Beginning 
Termini 
(LM) 

Ending 
Termini 
(LM) 

Segment 
Length 
(mi.) 

Litter Pass 
Miles Per 
Segment 

Segment 
Total 
Litter (mi.) 

Price per 
Litter Mile 

Number 
of Litter 
Cycles 

Contract 
Segment 
Total Litter 
(mi.) 

 Contract 
Segment Total 
Litter ($)  

I0024 2A 0.000 6.640 6.640 3 19.92  $   15.00  52 1035.840  $   15,537.60  

I0024 2B 6.640 10.770 4.130 2 8.26  $   15.00  52 429.520  $     6,442.80  

I0024 2A 10.770 11.060 0.290 3 0.87  $   15.00  52 45.240  $        678.60  

I0024 2B 11.060 13.900 2.840 2 5.68  $   15.00  52 295.360  $     4,430.40  

I0024 2A 13.900 14.710 0.810 3 2.43  $   15.00  52 126.360  $     1,895.40  

I0075 2B 0.000 1.000 1.000 2 2  $   15.00  52 104.000  $     1,560.00  

I0075 2A 1.000 1.760 0.760 3 2.28  $   15.00  52 118.560  $     1,778.40  

I0075 2B 1.760 12.320 10.560 2 21.12  $   15.00  52 1098.240  $   16,473.60  

I0075 2A 12.320 14.490 2.170 3 6.51  $   15.00  26 169.260  $     2,538.90  

I0075 2B 14.490 15.630 1.140 2 2.28  $   15.00  26 59.280  $        889.20  

I124 2A 0.000 0.500 0.500 3 1.5  $   15.00  52 78.000  $     1,170.00  

I124 2B 0.500 1.950 1.450 2 2.9  $   15.00  52 150.800  $     2,262.00  

SR029 2B 0.000 2.510 2.510 2 5.02  $   15.00  52 261.040  $     3,915.60  

SR029 2A 2.510 11.060 8.550 3 25.65  $   15.00  52 1333.800  $   20,007.00  

SR029 2A 11.060 19.590 8.530 3 25.59  $   15.00  26 665.340  $     9,980.10  

SR029 2B 19.590 20.720 1.130 2 2.26  $   15.00  26 58.760  $        881.40  

SR029 2A 20.720 25.560 4.840 3 14.52  $   15.00  26 377.520  $     5,662.80  

SR029 2B 25.560 30.180 4.620 2 9.24  $   15.00  26 240.240  $     3,603.60  

SR029 2A 30.180 30.840 0.660 3 1.98  $   15.00  26 51.480  $        772.20  

SR153 2A 0.000 0.660 0.660 3 1.98  $   15.00  52 102.960  $     1,544.40  

SR153 2B 0.660 7.590 6.930 2 13.86  $   15.00  52 720.720  $   10,810.80  



Rev. 5-28-14   Page 3 of 3 

EXHIBIT A 

SR153 2A 7.590 8.010 0.420 3 1.26  $   15.00  52 65.520  $        982.80  

SR153 2B 8.010 11.660 3.650 2 7.3  $   15.00  52 379.600  $     5,694.00  

SR153 2A 11.660 12.620 0.960 3 2.88  $   15.00  52 149.760  $     2,246.40  

SR153 2B 12.620 12.870 0.250 2 0.5  $   15.00  52 26.000  $        390.00  

SR058 2A 7.012 8.550 1.538 3 4.614  $   12.50  52 239.928  $     2,999.10  

SR058 2B 8.550 10.590 2.040 2 4.08  $   12.50  52 212.160  $     2,652.00  

SR058 2A 10.590 17.240 6.650 3 19.95  $   12.50  52 1037.400  $   12,967.50  

SR058 2B 17.240 26.190 8.950 2 17.9  $   12.50  52 930.800  $   11,635.00  

SR319 2B 8.155 21.290 13.135 2 26.27  $   12.50  26 683.020  $     8,537.75  

SR111 2B 0.000 3.460 3.460 2 6.92  $   15.00  12 83.040  $     1,245.60  

SR111 2A 3.460 7.350 3.890 3 11.67  $   15.00  12 140.040  $     2,100.60  

SR002 2A 21.140 21.540 0.400 3 1.2  $   12.50  26 31.200  $        390.00  

SR002 2B 21.540 24.420 2.880 2 5.76  $   12.50  26 149.760  $     1,872.00  

SR008 2B 15.781 23.170 7.389 2 14.778  $   12.50  12 177.336  $     2,216.70  

SR027 2B 0.000 1.967 1.967 2 3.934  $   12.50  12 47.208  $        590.10  

SR060 2B 0.000 1.600 1.600 2 3.2  $   12.50  26 83.200  $     1,040.00  

SR148 2B 0.000 1.409 1.409 2 2.818  $   12.50  12 33.816  $        422.70  

SR312 2B 0.000 16.421 16.421 2 32.842  $   12.50  12 394.104  $     4,926.30  

SR317 2B 5.460 15.760 10.300 2 20.6  $   12.50  26 535.600  $     6,695.00  

SR320 2B 5.072 7.290 2.218 2 4.436  $   12.50  12 53.232  $        665.40  

SR321 2B 0.000 7.090 7.090 2 14.18  $   12.50  12 170.160  $     2,127.00  

Total Contract Litter (mi.): 13145.204  $ 185,230.75  

 



1 

CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

AND 
COUNTY OF HAMILTON 

 

This Contract, by and between the State of Tennessee, Department of Transportation, hereinafter 

referred to as the “Department” and County of Hamilton, hereinafter referred to as the “Agency” is for the 

provision of a special agreement for litter removal, as further defined in the "SCOPE OF SERVICES." 

 

Contract #: CMA 1572 

 

A. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 

A.1. The Agency shall provide all service and deliverables as required, described, and detailed herein 

and shall meet all service and delivery timelines as specified by this Contract. 

 

A.2. Tenn. Code Ann. § 54-16-106 provides that the highway authorities of the state, counties, cities, 

and town are authorized to enter into agreements with each other respecting the improvement 

and maintenance of controlled-access facilities, defined by Tenn. Code Ann. § 54-16-101 as a 

highway or street specially designed for through traffic, and over, from or to which owners or 

occupants of abutting land or other persons have no right or easement of access from abutting 

properties. 

 

A.3. Tenn. Code Ann. § 54-5-139 provides that the Department may enter into a contract with a 

qualified county to perform maintenance activities upon the rights-of-way of state highways 

located outside of municipalities and metropolitan governments; and, that the reimbursement 

shall be on an actual cost basis. 

 

A.4. The Department is hereby contracting with the Agency for the improvements and maintenance 

specified in Attachment, “Exhibit A” titled “Guidelines Covering Maintenance of State Highways 

through a County,” attached and incorporated hereto as part of this Contract.  

 

B. CONTRACT PERIOD: 
 

 This Contract shall be effective for the period beginning July 1, 2014, and ending on June 30, 

2015.  The Agency hereby acknowledges and affirms that the Department shall have no 

obligation for services rendered by the Agency which were not performed within this specified 

contract period. 

 

C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:   
 

C.1. Maximum Liability.  In no event shall the maximum liability of the Department under this Contract 

exceed ONE HUNDRED, EIGHTY-FIVE THOUSAND, TWO HUNDRED, THRITY, DOLLARS 

AND SEVENTY-FIVE CENTS ($185,230.75).  The payment rates in Section C.3 shall constitute 

the entire compensation due the Agency for all service and Agency obligations hereunder 

regardless of the difficulty, materials or equipment required.  The payment rates include, but are 

not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees, overheads, and all other direct and indirect costs incurred 

or to be incurred by the Agency. 

 

The Agency is not entitled to be paid the maximum liability for any period under the Contract or 

any extensions of the Contract for work not requested by the Department.  The maximum liability 

represents available funds for payment to the Agency and does not guarantee payment of any 

such funds to the Agency under this Contract unless the Department requests work and the 

Agency performs said work.  In which case, the Agency shall be paid in accordance with the 

payment rates detailed in Section C.3.  The Department is under no obligation to request work 

from the Agency in any specific dollar amounts or to request any work at all from the Agency 

during any period of this Contract. 

 



2 

C.2. Compensation Firm.  The payment rates and the maximum liability of the Department under this 

Contract are firm for the duration of the Contract and are not subject to escalation for any reason 

unless amended. 

 

C.3. Payment Methodology.  The Agency shall be compensated based on the payment rates herein 

for units of service authorized by the Department in a total amount not to exceed the Contract 

Maximum Liability established in Section C.1.   

 

a. The Agency’s compensation shall be contingent upon the satisfactory completion of units, 

milestones, or increments of service defined in Section A.   

 

b. The Agency shall be compensated for said units, milestones, or increments of service 

based upon the payment rates provided in Attachments “Exhibit A” titled “Guidelines 

Covering Maintenance of State Highways through a County,” attached and incorporated 

hereto as part of this Contract. 

 

C.4. Travel Compensation.  The Agency shall not be compensated or reimbursed for travel, meals, or 

lodging. 

 

C.5. Invoice Requirements. The Agency shall invoice the Department only for completed increments of 

service and for the amount stipulated in Section C.3, above, and present said sworn invoices 

within the time specified in Section C.6 below and no more often than monthly, with all necessary 

supporting documentation, to: 

 

Christopher Smith 

 District Operations Supervisor 

 State of Tennessee Department of Transportation 

 P.O. Box 22368 

 Chattanooga, TN 37422-2368 

 

a. Each invoice shall clearly and accurately detail at a minimum all of the following required 

information (calculations must be extended and totaled correctly). 

 

(1) Invoice Number (assigned by the Agency); 

(2) Invoice Date; 

(3) Contract Number (assigned by the Department); 

(4) Customer Account Name:  Tennessee Department of Transportation, 

Maintenance Division; 

(5) Customer Account Number (assigned by the Agency to the above-referenced 

Customer); 

(6) Agency Name; 

(7) Agency Tennessee Edison Registration ID Number;  

(8) Agency Contact for Invoice Questions (name, phone, and/or fax); 

(9) Agency Remittance Address; 

(10) Description of Delivered Service that shall detail the work performed by activity, 

including the quantified units of measure as identified in the Attachments, and 

work location that corresponds to the request for reimbursement of each activity 

submitted;  

(11) Complete Itemization of Charges, which shall detail the following:  

 

i. Service or Milestone Description (including name & title as applicable) of 

each service invoiced, 

ii. Number of Completed Units of Measure as applicable for each service 

invoiced, as provided in Exhibit A, 

iii. Applicable Payment Rate (as stipulated in Section C.3.) of each service 

invoiced, 

iv. Amount Due by Service, and 

v. Total Amount Due for the invoice period; and  

 (12) Any further information requested by the Department. 



3 

 

b. The Agency understands and agrees that an invoice under this Contract shall: 

 

(1) include only charges for service described in Contract Section A and Exhibit A, 

and in accordance with payment terms and conditions set forth in Contract 

Section C;  

(2) only be submitted for completed service and shall not include any charge for 

future work; 

(3) not include sales tax or shipping charges; and 

(4) initiate the timeframe for payment only when the Department is in receipt of the 

invoice, and the invoice meets the minimum requirements of this Section C.5. 

 

C.6 Timely Invoice.  The amount(s) per compensable increment (detailed in Section C.3) shall be 

contingent upon the Department’s receipt of an invoice (as required in Section C.5.) for said 

service(s) within sixty (60) days after the end of the calendar month in which the service(s) were 

rendered.  At the sole discretion of the Department, the amount per compensable increment of 

any service for which the Department receives an invoice later than prescribed herein shall be 

subject to a reduction in amount of up to 100%.  In the case of an untimely invoice, before any 

payment will be considered by the Department, the Agency must submit a written request 

regarding the untimely invoice, which shall detail the reason the invoice is untimely as well as the 

Agency’s plan for submitting all future invoices no later than prescribed herein, and it must be 

signed by an individual empowered to bind the Agency to this Contract. 

 

C.7. Payment of Invoice.  A payment by the Department shall not prejudice the Department's right to 

object to or question any payment, invoice, or matter in relation thereto.  A payment by the 

Department shall not be construed as acceptance of any part of the work or service provided or 

as approval of any amount invoiced.   

 

C.8. Invoice Reductions.  The Agency's invoice shall be subject to reduction for amounts included in 

any invoice or payment theretofore made which are determined by the Department, on the basis 

of audits conducted in accordance with the terms of this Contract, not to constitute proper 

remuneration for compensable services.   

 

C.9. Deductions.  The Department reserves the right to deduct from amounts, which are or shall 

become due and payable to the Agency under this or any contract between the Agency and the 

State of Tennessee any amounts, which are or shall become due and payable to the State of 

Tennessee by the Agency. 

 

C.10. Prerequisite Documentation.  The Agency shall not invoice the Department under this Contract 

until the Department has received the following documentation properly completed.   

 

a. The Agency shall complete, sign, and present to the Department an "Authorization 

Agreement for Automatic Deposit (ACH Credits) Form" provided by the Department.  By 

doing so, the Agency acknowledges and agrees that, once said form is received by the 

Department, all payments to the Agency, under this or any other contract the Agency has 

with the State of Tennessee shall be made by Automated Clearing House (ACH). 

 

b. The Agency shall complete, sign, and present to the Department a "Substitute W-9 Form” 

provided by the Department.  The taxpayer identification number detailed by said form 

must agree with the Agency's Federal Employer Identification Number or Tennessee 

Edison Registration ID referenced in this Contract.   

 

D. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

D.1. Required Approvals.  The Department is not bound by this Contract until it is signed by the 

contract parties. 

 

D.2. Modification and Amendment.  This Contract may be modified only by a written amendment 

signed by all parties hereto and approved by both the officials who approved the base contract 



4 

and, depending upon the specifics of the contract as amended, any additional officials required by 

Tennessee laws and regulations. 

 

D.3. Termination for Convenience.  The Department may terminate this Contract without cause for any 

reason.  Said termination shall not be deemed a breach of contract by the Department.  The 

Department shall give the Agency at least thirty (30) days written notice before the effective 

termination date.  The Agency shall be entitled to compensation for satisfactory, authorized 

service completed as of the termination date, but in no event shall the Department be liable to the 

Agency for compensation for any service which has not been rendered.   Upon such termination, 

the Agency shall have no right to any actual general, special, incidental, consequential, or any 

other damages whatsoever of any description or amount. 

 

D.4. Termination for Cause.  If the Agency fails to properly perform its obligations under this Contract 

in a timely or proper manner, or if the Agency violates any terms of this Contract, the Department 

shall have the right to immediately terminate the Contract and withhold payments in excess of fair 

compensation for completed services.  Notwithstanding the above, the Agency shall not be 

relieved of liability to the Department for damages sustained by virtue of any breach of this 

Contract by the Agency. 

 

D.5. Subcontracting.  The Agency shall not assign this Contract or enter into a subcontract for any of 

the services performed under this Contract without obtaining the prior written approval of the 

Department.  If such subcontracts are approved by the Department, each shall contain, at a 

minimum, sections of this Contract pertaining to "Conflicts of Interest," "Nondiscrimination," 

“Records,” “Monitoring,” and “State and Federal Requirements,” (as identified by the section 

headings).  Notwithstanding any use of approved subcontractors, the Agency shall be the prime 

contractor and shall be responsible for all work performed. 

 

D.6. Conflicts of Interest.  The Agency warrants that no part of the total Contract amount shall be paid 

directly or indirectly to an employee or official of the State of Tennessee as wages, 

compensation, or gifts in exchange for acting as an officer, agent, employee, subcontractor, or 

consultant to the Agency in connection with any work contemplated or performed relative to this 

Contract.  

 

D.7. Nondiscrimination.  The Agency hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person shall be 

excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination 

in the performance of this Contract or in the employment practices of the Agency on the grounds 

of handicap or disability, age, race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or any other classification 

protected by Federal, Tennessee State constitutional, or statutory law.  The Agency shall, upon 

request, show proof of such nondiscrimination and shall post in conspicuous places, available to 

all employees and applicants, notices of nondiscrimination. 

 

D.8. Records.  The Agency shall maintain documentation for all charges under this Contract.  The 

books, records, and documents of the Agency, insofar as they relate to work performed or money 

received under this Contract, shall be maintained for a period of three (3) full years from the date 

of the final payment and shall be subject to audit at any reasonable time and upon reasonable 

notice by the Department, the Comptroller of the Treasury, or their duly appointed 

representatives.  The financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. 

 

D.9. Monitoring.  The Agency’s activities conducted and records maintained pursuant to this Contract 

shall be subject to monitoring and evaluation by the Department, the Comptroller of the Treasury, 

or their duly appointed representatives. 

 

D.10. Progress Reports.  The Agency shall submit brief, periodic, progress reports to the Department 

as requested. 

 

D.11. Strict Performance.  Failure by any party to this Contract to insist in any one or more cases upon 

the strict performance of any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or provisions of this Contract 

shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such term, covenant, condition, or 



5 

provision.  No term or condition of this Contract shall be held to be waived, modified, or deleted 

except by a written amendment signed by the parties hereto. 

 

D.12. Independent Contractor.  The parties hereto, in the performance of this Contract, shall not act as 

employees, partners, joint venturers, or associates of one another.  It is expressly acknowledged 

by the parties hereto that such parties are independent contracting entities and that nothing in this 

Contract shall be construed to create a employer/employee relationship or to allow either to 

exercise control or direction over the manner or method by which the other transacts its business 

affairs or provides its usual services.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be deemed 

or construed to be the employees or agents of the other party for any purpose whatsoever. 

 

The Agency, being a Tennessee governmental entity, is governed by the provisions of the 

Tennessee Government Tort Liability Act, Tennessee Code Annotated, Sections 29-20-101 et 
seq., for causes of action sounding in tort.  Further, no contract provision requiring a Tennessee 

political entity to indemnify or hold harmless the Department beyond the liability imposed by law is 

enforceable because it appropriates public money and nullifies governmental immunity without 

the authorization of the General Assembly. 

 

D.13. Department Liability.  The Department shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this 

Contract. The Department does not assume any liability for damages caused to persons or 

property by reason of the Agency performance of this Contract, The Department assumes no 

liability for injury to any person or employees of the Agency performing work under this Contract. 

 

D.14. Force Majeure.  The obligations of the parties to this Contract are subject to prevention by causes 

beyond the parties’ control that could not be avoided by the exercise of due care including, but 

not limited to, natural disasters, riots, wars, epidemics, or any other similar cause. 

 

D.15. State and Federal Compliance.  The Agency shall comply with all applicable State and Federal 

laws and regulations in the performance of this Contract. 

 

D.16. Governing Law.  This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Tennessee.  The Agency agrees that it will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction 

of the courts of the State of Tennessee in actions that may arise under this Contract.  The Agency 

acknowledges and agrees that any rights or claims against the State of Tennessee or its 

employees hereunder, and any remedies arising therefrom, shall be subject to and limited to 

those rights and remedies, if any, available under Tennessee Code Annotated, Sections 9-8-101 

through 9-8-407. 

 

D.17. Completeness.  This Contract is complete and contains the entire understanding between the 

parties relating to the subject matter contained herein, including all the terms and conditions of 

the parties’ agreement.  This Contract supersedes any and all prior understandings, 

representations, negotiations, and agreements between the parties relating hereto, whether 

written or oral. 

 

D.18. Severability.  If any terms and conditions of this Contract are held to be invalid or unenforceable 

as a matter of law, the other terms and conditions hereof shall not be affected thereby and shall 

remain in full force and effect.  To this end, the terms and conditions of this Contract are declared 

severable. 

 

D.19. Headings.  Section headings of this Contract are for reference purposes only and shall not be 

construed as part of this Contract. 

 

E. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

E.1. Conflicting Terms and Conditions.  Should any of these special terms and conditions conflict with 

any other terms and conditions of this Contract, these special terms and conditions shall control.  

 

E.2. Communications and Contacts.  All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other 

communications required or contemplated by this Contract shall be in writing and shall be made 



6 

by certified, first class mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid, by overnight courier 

service with an asset tracking system, or by EMAIL or facsimile transmission with recipient 

confirmation.  Any such communications, regardless of method of transmission, shall be 

addressed to the respective party at the appropriate mailing address, facsimile number, or EMAIL 

address as set forth below or to that of such other party or address, as may be hereafter specified 

by written notice. 

 

The Department: 

 

 Christopher Smith 

 District Operations Supervisor 

 State of Tennessee Department of Transportation 

 P.O. Box 22368 

 Chattanooga, TN 37422-2368 

 Christopher.Smith@tn.gov 

Telephone # 423 510 1254  

FAX # 423 510 1155 

 

The Agency: 

 

Greg Gregory 

 Program Manager 

County of Hamilton 

 6215 Dayton Blvd. 

 Chattanooga, TN 37343 

GregG@hamiltontn.gov 

Telephone #  423 847 4845 

FAX #  423 847 4844 

 

All instructions, notices, consents, demands, or other communications shall be considered 

effectively given upon receipt or recipient confirmation as may be required. 

 

E.3. Subject to Funds Availability.  The Contract is subject to the appropriation and availability of State 

of Tennessee and/or Federal funds.  In the event that the funds are not appropriated or are 

otherwise unavailable, the Department reserves the right to terminate the Contract upon written 

notice to the Agency.  Said termination shall not be deemed a breach of Contract by the 

Department.  Upon receipt of the written notice, the Agency shall cease all work associated with 

the Contract.  Should such an event occur, the Agency shall be entitled to compensation for all 

satisfactory and authorized services completed as of the termination date.  Upon such 

termination, the Agency shall have no right to recover from the Department any actual, general, 

special, incidental, consequential, or any other damages whatsoever of any description or 

amount. 

 

E.4. MUTCD.  In accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. 54-5-108, the Agency shall conform to and act in 

accordance with the current edition of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) 

as adopted by rules of the Department. Particularly, the Agency shall sign work-zones associated 

with this Contract in accordance with the aforesaid MUTCD. 

 

E. 5. Maintenance. Nothing contained in this Contract shall change the maintenance obligations 

governed by the laws of the State of Tennessee, it being the intent of this Contract not to enlarge 

the present maintenance obligations of the Department.   

 

 

 

  



7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON: 

 

AGENCY SIGNATURE DATE 

 

 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF AGENCY SIGNATORY (above)  

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 

___________________________________________________________________________________
AGENCY ATTORNEY SIGNATURE                                                                   DATE 

STATE OF TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 

 

JOHN SCHROER, COMMISSIONER  DATE 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

DEPARTMENT GENERAL COUNSEL 

 



 

 

No. 714-8 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO DECLARE THE FORMER ARMY RESERVE CENTER PROPERTY  
LOCATED ON EAST 23RD STREET AND JOINTLY-OWNED BY HAMILTON COUNTY 
AND THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA AS SURPLUS, TO ACCEPT A PROPOSAL FROM 
ROCKY TOP ENTERPRISES LLC, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
NEGOTIATE A REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE SALE PRICE OF 
$157,348. 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County (County) and the City of Chattanooga (City) jointly-own 

property formerly known as the 23rd Street Army Reserve Center located at 
2021 and 2029 East 23rd Street, identified as State Tax Map No. 156G-B-014, 
and consisting of 4.6 acres, more or less; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on June 30, 2012, the ground lease between the City, County, and federal 

government expired and the property was returned to the City and County and 
has remained vacant since that time; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that neither the City or County has a current or future 

use for said property; and,  
 

WHEREAS,   the City issued a Request for Proposals March 2013 and December 2013; and,     
 
WHEREAS,  Rocky Top Enterprises, LLC has submitted the only proposal for the reuse 

and purchase of said property ($157,348), as shown in the attached proposal 
summary; and, 

 
WHEREAS, acceptance of said proposal and sale of property is in the best interest of the 

citizens of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
SESSION ASSEMBLED:  
 



 

 

 

 

That the former Army Reserve Center property jointly-owned by Hamilton 
County and the City of Chattanooga be declared surplus, to accept the 
proposal submitted by Rocky Top Enterprises, LLC, and to authorize the 
County Mayor to negotiate, enter into and execute a real estate purchase 
agreement for the sale price of $157,348 plus costs of closing, and to sign all 
documents necessary to convey said property.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 





 

 

No. 714-9 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ARCHITECTURAL FIRMS FOR THE DESIGN OF ONE 
NEW SCHOOL AND THREE ADDITIONS TO EXISTING SCHOOLS. 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 504-17 was approved by this Legislative Body, on May 5, 2004, for 

the selection of architects relative to the construction of school facilities and, in 
accordance with the adopted procedures, the County Mayor recommends the 
firms listed below; and, 

 
WHEREAS, a contract and design fee will be approved by the Hamilton County Commission 

before design begins. 
 
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

 
That the following firms are approved to design the designated schools: 

 
ARCHITECT SCHOOL 
 
Derthick, Henley & Wilkerson Architects New Ganns Middle Valley Elementary  
Franklin Architects Nolan Elementary School Addition  
Hefferlin + Kronenberg Architects Sale Creek Middle/High School Addition 
Billingsley Architecture Wolftever Elementary School Addition 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 

 

No. 714-10 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN A  LEASE AGREEMENT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $9,445.00 ANNUALLY WITH CHATTANOOGA CHURCH MINISTRIES, INC. D.B.A., 
CHATTANOOGA COMMUNITY KITCHEN FOR SPACE FOR USE BY HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT’S HOMELESS HEALTH CARE CENTER, FOR THE PERIOD OF 
JANUARY 1, 2014 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2014. 
 
WHEREAS:   In 2010, ARRA funds were accepted by the County to renovate 1891 square feet of space 

owned by Chattanooga Church Ministries, and;  
 
WHEREAS:   The utilization of federal funds for that renovation created federal interest in that square 

footage, and; 
 
WHEREAS:    In 2013, the County accepted a grant expansion to provide Outreach and Enrollment workers to 

assist homeless individuals in obtaining health insurance through the Federal Exchange, and; 
 
WHEREAS:   That grant expansion provided federal dollars for rental of office space for the Outreach and 

Enrollment workers, and; 
 
WHEREAS:   Those workers are to be housed in the renovated 1891 square feet of space owned by 

Chattanooga  Church Ministries, and; 
 
WHEREAS:   Chattanooga Church Ministries is willing to lease the aforementioned renovated space to 

Hamilton County for an annual fee of $9,445.00. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
  That the County Mayor is authorized to sign the attached lease for space located  

at 711 E. 11th Street for an amount of $9,445.00 annually for the period of January 1, 2014 
through December 31, 2014. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 









 

 

No. 714-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO CONTINUE AN AGREEMENT BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND 
ENDING JUNE 30, 2015, BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY AND THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF 
HUMAN SERVICES TO PROVIDE ADULT DAYCARE AND HOMEMAKER SERVICES FOR ELIGIBLE 
INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES AMOUNTING TO $330,000. 

 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County is committed to improving the plight of its elderly and special needs 

citizens; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Title XX of the Social Security Act, the Tennessee Department of Human 

Services seeks to enter into a contractual agreement with Hamilton County for social 
services as prescribed by the Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Plan for persons who 
meet the eligibility requirements; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County subcontracts with Partnership for Families, Children, and Adults Inc., to 

provide Homemaker Services, and Signal Centers, Inc. to provide Adult Daycare 
Services; and, 

 
WHEREAS, these revenues and expenditures have previously been budgeted in the Emergency 

Services Department; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor is hereby authorized to continue an agreement (copies 
available upon request) between Hamilton County and the Tennessee Department of 
Human Services to provide social services in the amount of $264,000 for eligible 
individuals and families pursuant to Title XX of the Social Security Act, and provide 
local funds in the amount of $66,000 previously budgeted in the Emergency Services 
Department. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 





































































 

 

No. 714 -12 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, 
THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT TO CONTINUE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENTS WITH THE PARTNERSHIP FOR FAMILIES, 
CHILDREN AND ADULTS INC. AND SIGNAL CENTERS INC. BEGINNING JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 
2015, TO PROVIDE TITLE XX SOCIAL SERVICES FOR ELIGIBLE INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES AMOUNTING 
TO $330,000. 

 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County subcontracts with Partnership for Families, Children, and Adults Inc., to 

provide homemaker services and with Signal Centers, Inc. to provide adult day care services for 
eligible individuals; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Title XX of the Social Security Act, the Tennessee Department of Human Services 

(TDHS) is entering into a contractual agreement with Hamilton County for social services as 
prescribed by the Tennessee Comprehensive Annual Plan for persons who meet the eligibility 
requirements; and, 

 
WHEREAS, funding for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, is as follows: 
 

 

STATE COUNTY TOTAL
Partnership 179,000        44,750          223,750        
Signal Centers 85,000          21,250          106,250        

TOTALS 264,000$      66,000$        330,000$       
   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor is hereby authorized to continue agreements (copies available upon 
request) between Hamilton County and Partnership for Families, Children, and Adults Inc., and 
Signal Centers, Inc. to provide social services for eligible individuals and families pursuant to 
Title XX of the Social Security Act, and to provide $264,000 from TDHS and $66,000 
previously budgeted in the Emergency Services Department. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, 
THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 



Attachment A

Hamilton County Government
Adult Day Care

July 1, 2014

FY 14/15 20% FY 14/15
 GRANT 

CONTRACT  COUNTY MATCH 
 TOTAL 

PROJECT 
1 23,460.00$   5,865.00$                    29,325.00$    
2 5,857.60$     1,464.40$                    7,322.00$       

4, 15 160.00$         40.00$                         200.00$          
5 8,296.40$     2,074.10$                    10,370.50$    
6 320.00$         80.00$                         400.00$          
7 -$               -$                              -$                 
8 8,000.00$     2,000.00$                    10,000.00$    
9 80.00$           20.00$                         100.00$          

10 60.00$           15.00$                         75.00$            
11, 12 480.00$         120.00$                       600.00$          

13 -$               -$                              -$                 
14 -$               -$                              -$                 
16 25,536.00$   6,384.00$                    31,920.00$    
17 -$               -$                              -$                 
18 -$               -$                              -$                 
20 -$               -$                              -$                 
22 12,750.00$   3,187.50$                    15,937.50$    
24

N/A

25 85,000.00$   21,250.00$                  106,250.00$  

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY                         
(detail schedule(s) attached as applicable)

GRANTEE:
PROGRAM NAME:
APPLICABLE PERIOD: The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period

BEGINNING: ENDING:    June 30, 2015

FY 13-14 SSBG AWARD $85,000

Supplies

Salaries
Benefits & Taxes
Professional Fees/Grant & Awards

Capitol Purchase

Telephone
Postage & Shipping
Occupancy
Equipment Rental & Maintenance
Printing & Publications
Travel/Conferences & Meetings
Interest
Insurance
Specific Assistance to Individuals
Depreciation
Other Non-Personnel

Grantee match Requirement (for any amount of 
the required Grantee Match that is not specifically 
delinaeated by other budget line-items

GRAND TOTAL

Indirect Cost
In-Kind Expense



Attachment A

                 



































HAMILTON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT PROPOSED BUDGET

FY 2014/2015

Attachment A

Hamilton County Government
Homemaker

July 1, 2014

FY 14/15 20% FY 14/15
 GRANT 

CONTRACT 
 COUNTY 
MATCH 

 TOTAL 
PROJECT 

1 98,000.00$     24,501.00$  122,501.00$  
2 23,452.00$     5,863.00$     29,315.00$     

4, 15

5 2,480.00$       620.00$        3,100.00$       
6 3,648.00$       912.00$        4,560.00$       
7 408.00$          102.00$        510.00$          
8

9

10 616.00$          153.00$        769.00$          
11, 12 14,780.00$     3,695.00$     18,475.00$     

13

14 2,016.00$       504.00$        2,520.00$       
16

17

18

20

22 33,600.00$     8,400.00$     42,000.00$     
24

N/A

25 179,000.00$  44,750.00$  223,750.00$  

BEGINNING:

EXPENSE OBJECT LINE-ITEM CATEGORY                         (detail 
schedule(s) attached as applicable)

Specific Assistance to Individuals

GRANTEE:

Printing & Publications
Travel/Conferences & Meetings
Interest
Insurance

Telephone
Supplies
Professional Fees/Grant & Awards

Depreciation

Postage & Shipping

ENDING:        June 30, 2015

Salaries
Benefits & Taxes

Occupancy
Equipment Rental & Maintenance

PROGRAM NAME:

APPLICABLE PERIOD: The grant budget line-item amounts below shall be applicable only to expense incurred during the period

Other Non-Personnel

Grantee match Requirement (for any amount of the required Grantee 
Match that is not specifically delinaeated by other budget line-items

GRAND TOTAL

Indirect Cost
In-Kind Expense

Capitol Purchase



























































 

 

No. 714-13 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
   A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-
HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO ACCEPT AN  AGREEMENT BEGINNING 
JULY 1, 2014 AND ENDING ON   JUNE 30, 2015, BETWEEN HAMILTON COUNTY AND THE CITY 
OF CHATTANOOGA IN THE AMOUNT OF $23,306.00 TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO 
FAMILIES AND INDIVIDUALS TO PREVENT THOSE FAMILIES AND INDIVIDUALS FROM 
BECOMING HOMELESS AND TO AMEND THE EXPENSE AND REVENUE BUDGETS BY ADDING 
$8,306.00. 
 
WHEREAS,  the City of Chattanooga has received Emergency Solutions Grant funds  

from the Department of Housing and Urban Development; and 
 

WHEREAS,  these funds are to be used to assist individuals and families imminently at  
risk of homelessness in maintaining permanent housing; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Chattanooga seeks to subcontract with Hamilton County to  

distribute these funds through the Emergency Assistance Program; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Hamilton County Emergency Assistance Program already provides  

temporary assistance to individuals and families with a mission to prevent 
homelessness and foster self sufficiency. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
  That the County Mayor is authorized to accept an agreement between Hamilton  

County and the City of Chattanooga in the amount of $23,306.00 to provide financial assistance 
to families and individuals for the prevention of homelessness and to amend the Expense and 
Revenue budgets by adding $8,306.00. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 

















































 

 

No. 714-14 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

  
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 
 

WHERAS,  the County Mayor proposes a change to the Hamilton County 
Employee Handbook regarding Appeals and Workplace Harassment 
Complaint Procedures 

 
WHERAS, pursuant to Resolution 1179-16, the Hamilton County Board of 

Commissioners must approve amendments to the Employee Handbook; 
and 

 
WHERAS, a copy of the purposed sections 800/801-Appeals and 802-Workplace 

Harassment Complaint Procedures for the Hamilton County Employee 
Handbook is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, as a 
though fully and completely copies verbatim: and 

 
NOW, THEEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 

SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 Effective July 2, 2014, the attached new section 800/801-802 of the 

Hamilton County Government Employee Handbook is hereby adopted. 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 

AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

 



800 – APPEALS/COMPLAINTS 

801 - Appeals 

I. Appeal from Discrimination - Any applicant or employee who has reason to believe that they have been 

discriminated against in any human resource decision or action because of non-merit factors such as race, 

national origin, sex, age or physical disability may within 30 days of the alleged incident, appeal in writing to the 

Equal Employment Opportunity Officer (EEO Officer). 

A. The EEO Officer will investigate the matter and provide recommendations in writing for appropriate 

action to the Chief of Staff or Appointing Authority within fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving the 

complaint. 

B. The Chief of Staff or Appointing Authority will review the findings of the EEO Officer and take 

appropriate corrective action if deemed necessary. 

C. The Chief of Staff or Appointing Authority will prepare and mail or deliver a written summary of actions 

taken or not taken, including reasons, to the applicant or employee and the EEO Officer within a 

reasonable period of time, not to exceed fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of receipt by the 

Chief of Staff or Appointing Authority of the EEO Officer's recommendations. 

D. The applicant or employee may then appeal in writing to the Employee Appeals Board within thirty (30) 

calendar days after issuance of the Chief of Staff’s or Appointing Authority’s summarization. 

i. A hearing by the Employee Appeals Board will be scheduled within 21 calendar days. 

ii. The person alleging the discriminatory action will have the right to be heard and to present 

evidence. If the Board finds that there was discrimination based on non-merit factors other than 

those that constitute a bona fide occupational qualification necessary to proper and efficient 

administration, it will order in writing the responsible agency to take appropriate corrective 

action. 

iii. A decision by the Board will be rendered in writing no later than 7 days after the hearing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



II. Appeal for Suspension, Demotion or Termination - Any regular employee who is suspended, demoted or 

terminated may appeal the adverse action through use of the appeals procedure below. 

A. If the employee is dissatisfied with the action taken he/she may appeal within fourteen (14) calendar 

days from the date of the notice of action taken. The appeal must be in writing to the Administrator of 

the Division or to the Appointing Authority, if the employee is not within a division of General 

Government. The Administrator, or his/her designee, will provide a hearing for the appeal within 

fourteen (14) calendar days and render a written decision within fourteen (14) calendar days of the 

hearing. 

B. If the employee is dissatisfied with the decision of the Division Administrator or Appointing Authority, 

he/she may appeal. The appeal must be in writing to the Human Resources Director within fourteen (14) 

calendar days of notice of the Division Administrator's or Appointing Authority’s decision. Notice will be 

deemed to have been received by the employee no later than five (5) days after the date of certified 

mailing to the last known address of the employee. The employee will be provided a hearing for the 

appeal within fourteen (14) calendar days and a written decision rendered within fourteen (14) calendar 

days from the date of the hearing. 

C. Appeals from the decision of the Human Resources Director will be to the Employee Appeals Board. 

Appeals must be in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of notice of the Human Resources 

Director’s decision and be filed with the Human Resources Department and forwarded to the Chairman 

of the Employee Appeals Board. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt of the appeal, the Board 

will serve the employee and the agency with written notice of the hearing date, which will be no later 

than 30 calendar days from the receipt of the written appeal. After hearing and considering the facts, 

the Board will render their decision by a majority voice vote, prepare its findings in written form within 

fourteen (14) calendar days, and notify the employee and the agency of its decision. Decisions by the 

Employee Appeals Board will be final. 

802 – Workplace Harassment Complaint Procedures 

I. Any employee who believes that they have been the subject of workplace harassment should report the alleged act 

immediately to a supervisor or to the EEO Officer. If the alleged harasser is not a County employee and the 

complaining party wishes to notify the employer, they will be assisted in forwarding the complaint to the alleged 

harasser or to the employer of the alleged harasser. 

A. Whenever possible, the complaining employee should document any incident(s) or information related to 

the offensive conduct, the date(s) on which it took place and the name(s) of anyone who witnessed the 

conduct or heard the offensive remarks. It is strongly encouraged that any submission of such 

documentation to the supervisor or EEO Officer be signed by the complaining employee. If it is a continuing 

problem, the complaining party should state when it began and document each occurrence prior to the time 



of the complaint. A complaint may be filed by a current employee, an applicant, an individual or a group of 

individuals. 

B. The complaining party will have the right to choose one person to accompany them at any or all stages of 

the complaint procedure. If the complaining party wishes to be accompanied, they must provide the 

recipient of the complaint with the identity of the accompanying person at least 3 work days prior to the 

meeting. If the complaining party or the accused chooses to be accompanied by an attorney, the attorney 

may only advise the party that requests their attendance during the process, and may neither present the 

complaining/accused party’s case nor question any witnesses. Confidentiality will be maintained during the 

complaint procedure to the degree allowed by law. 

C. In those instances where an informal resolution is appropriate and requested by the complaining party, the 

EEO Officer or other appropriate investigating official will advise and assist the individual in resolving the 

matter. 

D. In those matters not justifying informal resolution, the investigating official will conduct an investigation 

appropriate to the nature of the inquiry or complaint, by privately interviewing the complaining party, any 

possible witnesses and the alleged harasser. The information furnished will be maintained by the 

interviewer(s) during the course of any investigation. 

E. Upon completion of the investigation, the investigating official will prepare a report of the findings, which 

will be sent to the Chief of Staff and other appropriate elected official within fourteen (14) calendar days of 

receiving the complaint. The Chief of Staff and/or other appropriate elected official will review the findings 

of the investigation and take appropriate corrective action. The Chief of Staff or other appropriate elected 

official will prepare and mail or deliver a written summary of actions taken to the complaining party, the 

alleged harasser and the EEO Officer within fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of receipt of the 

investigating official’s recommendations. 

F. If the complaining party or alleged harasser is not satisfied with the action taken, they may appeal in writing 

to the Employee Appeals Board within 30 calendar days from being notified of the action taken. A hearing by 

the Board will be scheduled within 21 calendar days of the hearing request. Either party will have the right 

to be accompanied to the hearing by an attorney, be heard and present evidence, but any attorney 

accompanying either party may only advise the party requesting their attendance, and may neither present 

the party’s case nor question any witness(es). If the Board finds that there was harassment, it will order 

appropriate corrective action. A written decision by the Board will be rendered no later than 7 calendar days 

after the hearing is completed. 

G. If the findings of the investigating official indicate that harassment has not occurred, the official will 

recommend that the matter be closed. If the complaining party and the alleged harasser accept the report 

as submitted, the EEO Officer will notify the Chief of Staff, appropriate elected official and the alleged 

harasser that the matter has been closed. 



H. If the investigation reveals a valid complaint, appropriate corrective action to immediately stop the 

harassment and to prevent its recurrence will be taken. Such action may include, but not be limited to, 

verbal or written reprimand, suspension, demotion or termination according to Section 700 of this 

Handbook. 

I. Reprisal or retaliation against the complaining party or witnesses participating in the investigation is 

prohibited and is an independent ground for disciplinary action. 

J. Any employee who prevents or attempts to prevent any individual from making a complaint of workplace 

harassment, fails to cooperate with or interferes in any way with the investigation of such a complaint will 

be subject to discipline according to Section 700 of this Handbook. 

K. It will be the responsibility of managers and supervisors to take all steps necessary to ensure that the 

provisions of this policy are enforced. 

L. Any employee having questions about the policy may discuss them with the Human Resources Director, 

Equal Employment Opportunity Officer, County Attorney, a supervisor or other appropriate official. 

M. As an alternative, employees may file a complaint with the Tennessee Human Rights Commission, U.S. Equal 

Employment Opportunity Commission or they may file a lawsuit in the appropriate court. 

 



 

No. 714-15 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
July 2, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE EXPENDITURES AT THE DISCRETION OF THE INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS 
OF THE COUNTY COMMISSION IN AN AGGREGATE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED NINE HUNDRED 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($900,000) FROM THE COUNTY LINE OF CREDIT TO BE USED EXCLUSIVELY FOR 
PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL PROJECTS AS DEFINED BY TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 9-21-
105. 
 
WHEREAS,  the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners through Resolution 813-22 authorized 

the issuance of bond anticipation notes in an aggregate amount not to exceed Ninety 
Million Dollars ($90,000,000), and defined the public works capital projects eligible for 
financing under such notes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners through Resolution 1013-23 approved a revolving line of 

credit agreement in order to finance the capital projects authorized above; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to allocate Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($900,000) of such line of credit funds toward certain public works capital projects as 
may be identified and designated in the discretion of each of the respective County 
Commissioners. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the aggregate amount of Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($900,000) of funds from the County 
line of credit shall be designated toward funding certain capital projects as identified and so 
designated in the discretion of each County Commissioner, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The total of Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($900,000) in designated funds shall be allocated 
equally amongst the nine (9) Hamilton County Commissioners with each commissioner being 
authorized to expend his/her respective share of said allocated amount at his/her discretion 
toward capital projects to promote the general welfare of the residents of Hamilton County. 

 
 

 



 

 

 

2. Any designated funds allocated to a commissioner that remains unspent at the end of a 
commissioner’s tenure shall be designated to his/her successor to be spent at their discretion 

 
3. All funds designated by this resolution shall be expended only for public works capital projects 

that are eligible for financing through County bonds and meet the requirements of Tennessee 
Code Annotated 9-21-105 and Resolution 813-22. 
 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE 
PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

July 2, 2014 

  
Date 

  


	7-2-14 Public Agenda
	714-_S_Minutes_June 11 2014 Recessed Meeting_956_06-11-14 Recessed
	714-_S_Minutes_June 11 2014 Agenda Session_955_06-11-14 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	714-_S_Minutes_June 18 2014 Regular Meeting_957_06-18-14 Regular
	DELEGATIONS

	714-1_R_County Clerk_Notary Public_954_07-02-14
	714-1_S_County Clerk_Notary Public_954_07-02-14 A
	714-2_R_Bill Knowles_Print On Demand System for County Clerk's Office_950_Print on Demand Resolution
	714-2_S_Bill Knowles_Print On Demand System for County Clerk's Office_950_Print on Demand Program
	714-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report May 2014_941_Trustee Monthly Report May 2014
	714-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report May 2014_942_Trustee Excess Fee Report May 2014
	714-_S_Report_Criminal Court Report_960_Criminal Court Clerk Report - May 2014
	714-_S_Report_Juvenile Court Report April 2014_962_Juvenile Court Clerk Report - April 2014
	714-3_R_Sheriff Hammond_Sheriff Contract Lakesite_943_Lakesite
	714-3_S_Sheriff Hammond_Sheriff Contract Lakesite_943_Contract Lakesite Sheriff Agreement FY 2015
	714-3A_R_Sheriff Hammond_Sheriff Contract Lakesite Revised
	714-4_R_Bill McGriff_Door Access Materials_945_RES. DOOR ACCESS MATERIALS 7-2-14
	714-4_S_Bill McGriff_Door Access Materials_945_Bid#0514-146 Door Access Materials
	714-5_R_Bill McGriff_Miscellaneous Voice and Data Communications Materials_946_RES. VOICE & DATA TELECOMMUNICATIONS MATERIALS
	714-5_S_Bill McGriff_Miscellaneous Voice and Data Communications Materials_946_Misc Voice and Data Materials
	3209_001.pdf
	3209_028

	714-6_R_Don Allen_Courts Community Service contract with City of Chattanooga_948_Resolution City of Chattanooga Contract
	714-6_S_Don Allen_Courts Community Service contract with City of Chattanooga_948_Courts Community Service City of Chattanooga Contract
	714-7_R_Don Allen_Courts Community Service Program contract with TDOT_949_RESOLUTION Courts Community Service and TDOT State hws and right of ways
	714-7_S_Don Allen_Courts Community Service Program contract with TDOT_949_Courts Comm Service TDOT Contract State right of ways Exhibit A
	714-7_S_Don Allen_Courts Community Service Program contract with TDOT_949_Courts Comm Service TDOT Contract State right of ways
	714-8_R_Todd Leamon_Sale of former Army Reserve Center Property_947_Res Rocky Top Ent. LLC 6.02.14.doc
	714-8_S_Todd Leamon_Sale of former Army Reserve Center Property_947_Proposal Summary
	714-9_R_Todd Leamon_Professional Services Approval_958_2014 School Projects Resolution
	714-10_R_Becky Barnes_Homeless Lease Agreement_951_2015 - Homeless Lease Agreement - Resolution
	714-10_S_Becky Barnes_Homeless Lease Agreement_951_2015 Lease Agreement
	714-11_R_Becky Barnes_Adult Day Care and Homemaker Services with DHS_952_Adult Day Care Homemaker 2015 Resolution
	714-11_S_Becky Barnes_Adult Day Care and Homemaker Services with DHS_952_Adult Day Care Homemaker Services Contract 2015
	714-11_S_Becky Barnes_Adult Day Care and Homemaker Services with DHS_952_Homemaker Services Contract 2015
	714-12_R_Becky Barnes_Subcontract agreements with Partnership Adult Inc and Signal Centers_953_Subcontract Partnership 2015
	714-12_S_Becky Barnes_Subcontract agreements with Partnership Adult Inc and Signal Centers_953_Attachment A Adult Day Care 2015
	Sheet1

	714-12_S_Becky Barnes_Subcontract agreements with Partnership Adult Inc and Signal Centers_953_Attachment B Adult Day Care 2015
	714-12_S_Becky Barnes_Subcontract agreements with Partnership Adult Inc and Signal Centers_953_Atttachment B Homemaker Services contract 2015
	714-12_S_Becky Barnes_Subcontract agreements with Partnership Adult Inc and Signal Centers_953_Homemaker Services Budget 2015
	Budget

	714-12_S_Becky Barnes_Subcontract agreements with Partnership Adult Inc and Signal Centers_953_Partnership for Familes Children and Adults 2015 contract
	714-12_S_Becky Barnes_Subcontract agreements with Partnership Adult Inc and Signal Centers_953_Signal Centers Contract 2015
	714-13_R_Becky Barnes_Emergency Assistance Program_967_Emergency Assistance Resolution 2015
	714-13_S_Becky Barnes_Emergency Assistance Program_967_Emergent Assistance Contract 2015
	714-14_R_Alecia Poe_Employee Handbook change_963_ResDOC
	714-14_S_Alecia Poe_Employee Handbook change_963_Section 800 Proposed Revisions 05 28 14
	714-15_R_Albert Kiser_ Commission Discretionary Funds



